
State of Nevada 
Department of Conservation and Natural 

Resources Joe Lombardo, Governor 
James A. Settelmeyer, Director 

Robin K. Reed, Acting Administrator 
Joseph Curtis, Chair

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING & AGENDA 
COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT 

COMMISSION
Tuesday, May 6th, 2025, at 5:00 pm 

There will not be a 4:30pm workshop. 
Meeting Location 

The meeting will be held via TEAMS conference, accessible via electronic devices 
connected to the internet with listening and microphone capabilities.  Video camera 

capability will also allow users to watch others in the meeting who are also using a video 
camera.  The in-person option will be held starting at 5:00pm, April 1, 2025: 

Comstock History Center 
Comstock Historic District Commission 

20 North E Street, 
Virginia City, NV  89440 

To join the Comstock Historic District Commission Meeting: 

Join the meeting now 
Meeting ID: 272 141 644 666 3 
Passcode: wL2f8Gs7

• Meetings are audio-recorded and/or transcribed as part of the public record.
• Action may be taken on those items denoted “For possible action.”
• At the discretion of the chair: items on the agenda may be taken out of order; two or more

agenda items may be combined; agenda items may be removed from the agenda, or delay
discussion relating to an item, at any time.

COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION -  MAY 5TH, 2025 MEETING Page 1

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MzRmOThiYzItNmI5YS00NTdlLTg5YmUtMTAyODFjNjUyNTQ2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22e4a340e6-b89e-4e68-8eaa-1544d2703980%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%227e69fc7a-9bb2-4dba-921c-ccba48d6bebd%22%7d
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NGE4ZTZiNDMtMDUxZC00MDI4LTlhMzgtYzU4YWFiMWNhZjYx%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22e4a340e6-b89e-4e68-8eaa-1544d2703980%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%227380a46d-fb3b-47d8-9dd0-014222963450%22%7d


• CALL TO ORDER.

Chair of the Comstock Historic District Commission (CHDC), Mr. Joe Curtis

• CALL FOR THE START OF THE RECORDING OF THE MEETING.
CHDC Chair and Staff.

• CALL FOR CONFIRMATION THE MEETING WAS PROPERLY POSTED.
CHDC Chair and Staff.

• ROLL CALL OF COMMISSIONERS AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM.
CHDC Chair and Staff.

• APPROVAL OF AGENDA. (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION)

Approval of the Agenda for Tuesday, May 6th, 2025.

• PUBLIC COMMENT.
Public comments will be made on any matter relevant to the Commission.  Public comments
will be heard at the beginning and end of the meeting and may be taken at the discretion of the
Chair on agenda items listed for possible action.  Public comments may be limited to three (3)
minutes per person at the discretion of the Chair on specific agenda items.  Comment will not
be restricted based on viewpoint.  No action will be taken on any matters raised during the
public comment period that are not already on the agenda.  All those providing comments are
asked to begin by stating their name for the record.

• ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS.
I. Chair’s Report
II. Staff Report
III. Commissioner Comments

• APPROVAL OF APRIL 8TH, 2025, MINUTES. (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION) - APPENDIX A

Minutes from April 8th, 2025, CHDC Meeting.

• ITEM ONE (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION) - APPENDIX B

ALTERATION, ADDITION, AND/OR REPAIRS TO AN HISTORIC FEATURE
 B St Roadway
Storey County repairs on the roadway B St, directly behind 76 N C St otherwise known as the 
"Red Dog Saloon". Storey County is seeking approval to stabilize and repair a stone wall using 
concrete, steel and wire mesh to preserve visibility of the stonework while ensuring safety 
concerns of both the roadway and the adjacent property.

COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION -  MAY 5TH, 2025 MEETING Page 2COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION -  MAY 5TH, 2025 MEETING Page 2

Cait Watson
Cross-Out



• ITEM TWO (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION) - APPENDIX C

NEW REGULATIONS
Revised Proposed Regulation of the Comstock Historic District Commission,
LCB File No. R016-24
Discussion on eliminating the positions of Secretary and Treasurer of the Comstock Historic District
Commission, transferring related Treasurer duties to the Chair, currently Joe Curtis. This includes revising
the powers and duties of the Chair and Vice Chair, updating qualifications for the architectural committee,
renaming the Office Manager to District Officer, and revising the District Officer's duties. Additionally, it
involves updating meeting requirements, district boundary maps, and application requirements for
certificates of appropriateness, while establishing standards for these considerations and clarifying the
authority of designated building inspectors.

• ITEM THREE (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION)

OFFICER ELECTIONS
Discussion of Officer Elections.

• PUBLIC COMMENT.
Public comments will be heard on any matter relevant to the Commission. Public comment may be limited
to three (3) minutes per person at the discretion of the Chair on specific agenda items.  Comment will not
be restricted based on viewpoint.  No action will be taken on any matters raised during the public
comment period that are not already on the agenda.  People providing comments will be asked to begin
by stating their name for the record.

• ADJOURNMENT.  (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION)

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodation or assistance at the meeting are requested to 
notify the Comstock Historic District Commission in writing at P.O. Box 128, 20 North E Street, Virginia City, Nevada 89440, by 
calling (775) 847-0281, or by emailing shelley.smith@shpo.nv.gov no later than 9:00am, March 31, 2025. 

Supporting documents for agenda items are made available on our website at: 
https://shpo.nv.gov/comstock-historic-district-commission.  Please contact the Commission office if you wish to obtain copies 
prior to the meeting by emailing the Comstock Preservation and History Officer, Shelley Smith, at shelley.smith@shpo.nv.gov, 
or by calling (775) 847-0281. 

This notice will be posted on or before 9:00am, on or before the third working day before the meeting at: 
• The Comstock Historic District Commission office located at 20 North E Street, Virginia City, NV  89440; all notices are

also posted online at  https://notice.nv.gov and http://shpo.nv.gov

COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION -  MAY 5TH, 2025 MEETING Page 3COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION -  MAY 5TH, 2025 MEETING Page 3COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION -  MAY 5TH, 2025 MEETING Page 3

mailto:shelley.smith@shpo.nv.gov
https://shpo.nv.gov/comstock-historic-district-commission
mailto:shelley.smith@shpo.nv.gov
https://notice.nv.gov/
http://shpo.nv.gov/


STATE OF NEVADA 
DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION AND NATURALRESOURCES 

JOE LOMBARDO, GOVERNOR 
JAMES A. SETTLEMEYER, DIRECTOR 

ROBIN K. REED, ACTING ADMINISTRATOR 
JOSEPH CURTIS, CHAIR 

MINUTES OF THE COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION 

DATE: Tuesday, April 8th, 2025

PLACE: Comstock Historic District Commission Office, 20 North E. Street, Virginia City, Nevada  89440 

WORKSHOP MEETING: None 

REGULAR MEETING TIME: 5:00 pm 

CALL TO ORDER: 5:00 pm 

________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.  The pledge was recited.

COMMISSIONER ROLL CALL. Quorum was achieved.

Clay Mitchell – Absent
Nancy Cleaves – Present 
Julie Workman – Present 
David Bates – Present 
Calvin Dillon – Present 
Tammy Hendrix – Present 
Nicole Ting – Present 
Joe Curtis – Present 
Mercedes de la Garza - Absent 
Staff, Preservation and History Officer Shelley Smith – Present 

OPENING PUBLIC COMMENT. 
Comstock Historic District (CHDC) Chair, Joe Curtis, opened the meeting to public comment by stating that 
comment relevant to the CHDC would be taken at the beginning and the end of the meeting and taken at the 
discretion of the Chair on all agenda items listed for possible action.  Comments were limited to three minutes per 
person and not restricted by viewpoint. It was advised that no action would be taken on any matters raised during 
the public comment period and all members of the public providing comment would first be asked to begin by 
stating their name for the record.  The Chair opened the floor to the public for comment, there was no public 
comment, and the meeting proceeded. 

COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION -  MAY 5TH, 2025 MEETING

APPENDIX A

COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION -  MAY 5TH, 2025 MEETING Page 4



ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS.

I. Chair’s Report – None.
II. Staff Report – Ms. Smith introduced the new administrative assistant, Cait Watson, to the staff. The meeting,

originally scheduled for the 1st of April 2025, had been rescheduled to April 8th, 2025. During the meeting,
Ms. Smith provided a detailed explanation of her plans for the upcoming Historic Preservation Month in May.
One of the key events is the Birdhouse Competition, which encourages local residents to create birdhouses
from upcycled materials while becoming more familiar with historical architectural styles. The goal of this
competition is to enhance public awareness of these styles and foster community engagement. The staff is
exploring ways to incentivize participation by reaching out to local businesses for potential prizes. Ms. Smith
mentioned that she would further consult with Nicole regarding the legalities of the prizes. Ultimately, she
hopes to create an exhibit featuring the entries at the History Center for public viewing. Another planned
activity is to hold model-building workshops for children in the community. These workshops will allow the
children to explore the area, build models, and report on their “special places” in Virginia City. Ms. Smith
expressed her desire to foster a sense of pride in the historical district and create a sense of community
bonding. This initiative will also culminate in an exhibit at the History Center, possibly featuring recordings
of the children sharing their favorite places, along with a self-guided walking tour and model submissions at
the end of May. Additionally, the staff reported they are actively working on acquiring a new screen for the
conference room and updating the software used by the commission. Joe shared his approval of these
improvements, believing they will enhance the Commission's presence in the community and promote
education about the historic district. Ms. Shelley shared a letter from the EPA, indicating that the full report
is available in her office for review. Ms. Mercedes expressed her desire for a complete copy of the report and
raised concerns about mercury in the soil in the area.

III. Correspondence (FOR POSSIBLE ACTION) – None.

APPROVAL OF THE FEBUARY 4th, 2025 MEETING MINUTES. 
CHDC Chair, Joe Curtis, entertained a motion to approve the CHD April 8th , 2025, Meeting Minutes. The motion 
carried unanimously. 

 ALTERATION, ADDITION, AND/OR REPAIRS TO AN HISTORIC BUILDING.
 148 SOUTH C STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NV  89440

Mr. Richard Siri is seeking to replicate the original balcony on his building, which was removed prior to his 
acquisition. Ms. Smith represented him and stated the new balcony will adhere to current building codes while 
matching the architectural style of existing balconies on C Street. She confirmed her approval of the plans, 
emphasizing Mr. Siri's extensive research. Concerns were raised by Ms. Mercedes de la Garza about the balcony's 
structural integrity and attachment to the building, citing safety for second-floor users. Ms. Smith reassured the 
committee that the Commission's approval would only be for the visual concept, as Mr. Siri will seek further 
approvals for building details later. Ms. Garza also highlighted the need for waterproofing to protect pedestrians 
below, which was supported by Mr. David Bates. Ms. Smith stated final plans would go to the building department 
after conceptual approval. Mr. Curtis suggested staff review final details if approved. Ms. Garza moved to approve 
the concept, requesting further validation with the Preservation and History Officer as the project progresses, and 
Mr. Bates seconded. The motion passed unanimously.

COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION -  MAY 5TH, 2025 MEETING Page 5

APPENDIX A



concerns about the accuracy of non-scale drawings and requested that the addition be set back 6 to 12 inches from 
the façade and use different siding to distinguish it from the original structure. Ms. Workman noted that Mr. Lutz 
based his proposal on the commission’s resource booklet, which Ms. Garza considered misleading. Mr. Curtis asked 
about the roofing, and Mr. Lutz stated he would replace some metal roofing sections to match the existing 
materials. Ms. Workman moved to approve the proposal with the condition that the addition be distinguishable 
from the original structure, with matching windows, a metal roofing system, and an extended porch. Ms. Tammy 
Hendrix seconded the motion, which passed with one dissent from Ms. Garza. Mr. Lutz thanked the Commission 
and left the meeting.

 CHDC DONATION FUND 5032.
Mr. Joe Curtis raised the issue of ownership of the History Center Building located at 20 N. E Street and the ongoing 
dispute between the county and state regarding who may use or own the property. He expressed a desire to better 
manage the donations that are intended for the upkeep of the museum portion of the building. The Legislative 
Council has indicated that the responsibility for maintaining financial records related to any donations lies with the 
commission. Mr. Curtis explained that the commission has not previously needed a treasurer or a bank account, 
and they will need to find a solution for managing the funds they are responsible for in the near future. He asked if 
there were any questions related to this issue, but none were raised.

PUBLIC COMMENT.

Mr. Claude Senzon inquired about the possibility of adding additional buildings to a property and whether they 
needed to match any existing structures. He also asked if he could install a balcony if one was not previously 
present. Ms. Nicole Ting informed Mr. Senzon that the commissioners could not address his questions without the 
items being on the agenda. Mr. Curtis referred him to Ms. Smith for any further questions or requests. Commissioner 
Ms. Julie Workman informed the Commission about events taking place in Dayton, including a scavenger hunt at 
the Dayton 1865 School House. Ms. Shelley expressed excitement about the events and requested to contact the 
commissioner for more details.

AGENDA ITEM 11, ADJOURNMENT. 

 Chair Joe Curtis entertained a motion to adjourn, and the motion carried unanimously. 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________
_ 

MEETING ADJOURNED: 6:15 pm 

APPENDIX A

 ALTERATION, ADDITION, AND/OR REPAIRS TO AN HISTORIC BUILDING.
 321 SOUTH D STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NV 89440

Peter and Joy Lutz are seeking approval for a 657-square-foot addition to their street-level home, which will 
include around 400 square feet of storage. The addition will use materials that match the existing siding and 
windows. Mr. Lutz attended the meeting virtually, and while Ms. Smith expressed approval, Ms. Garza raised 

COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION -  MAY 5TH, 2025 MEETING Page 6



APPENDIX B

COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION -  MAY 5TH, 2025 MEETING Page 7



EXISTIN
G

BU
ILD

IN
G

2
S1.1

25'-6" ±

LO
W

ER
 SH

O
TC

R
ETE

EXISTIN
G

SLO
PE

BEYO
N

D

N
EW

 STEEL M
ESH

 BETW
EEN

STEEL C
O

L. TO
 PR

EVEN
T

AD
D

ITIO
N

AL ER
O

SIO
N

 AT
EXISTIN

G
 R

O
C

K EXTEN
TS

IN
D

IC
ATES APPR

O
XIM

ATE EXTEN
TS

O
F EXISTIN

G
 R

O
C

KER
Y W

ALL

N
EW

 H
SS STEEL C

O
LU

M
N

S
@

 4'-0" ± o.c.
w

/ SO
IL N

AIL TIE BAC
K @

4'-0" ± o.c.

IN
D

IC
ATES EXISTIN

G
R

O
C

KER
Y W

ALL. ALL
JO

IN
TS TO

 BE R
EPO

IN
TED

N
EW

 SH
O

TC
R

ETE

N
EW

 SH
O

TC
R

ETE

N
EW

 SH
O

TC
R

ETE
FAC

IN
G

N
EW

 H
SS STEEL C

O
LU

M
N

S w
/ SO

IL
N

AIL TIE BAC
K @

 4'-0" ± o.c. AT
EXISTIN

G
 R

O
C

K W
ALL EXTEN

TS

B-STR
EET

5'-4" ±

13'-0" ±

F.O
. EXISTIN

G
R

O
C

KER
Y W

ALL

N
EW

SH
O

TC
R

ETE
FAC

IN
G

SO
IL N

AILS W
ALLS

EXISTIN
G

 R
O

C
KER

Y
W

ALL

4'-0" ± o.c.
MAX.

4'-0" ± o.c.
M

AX.

N
EW

 SO
IL N

AILS TO
STABILIZE SLO

PE

EXISTIN
G

R
ETAIN

IN
G

 W
ALL

D
R

AW
N

 BY:
D

ESIG
N

ED
 BY:

C
H

EC
KED

 BY:

BYDESCRIPTIONDATEREVJO
B N

O
.: 0

IF N
O

T O
N

E IN
C

H
 O

N
 TH

IS SH
EET,

AD
JU

ST SC
ALES AC

C
O

R
D

IN
G

LY

BAR
 IS 1 IN

C
H

 O
N

O
R

IG
IN

AL D
R

AW
IN

G

© LUMOS & ASSOCIATES, INC.: THIS DRAW
ING IS

THE PROPERTY OF LUMOS & ASSOCIATES, INC..
USE OR REPRODUCTION OF THIS DRAW

ING, IN
W

HOLE OR IN PART, W
ITHOUT THE W

RITTEN
PERMISSION OF LUMOS & ASSOCIATES, INC. IS
STRICTLY PROHIBITED.  THIS DRAW

ING IS NOT TO
BE USED FOR ANY PROJECT OTHER THAN THE
PROJECT FOR W

HICH IT W
AS PREPARED.O

F

W
W

W
.LU

M
O

SIN
C

.C
O

M

950 SAN
D

H
ILL R

O
AD

, SU
ITE 100

R
EN

O
, N

V 89521
TEL: 775.827.6111

IN
FO

@
LU

M
O

SIN
C

.C
O

M

STOREY COUNTY

RED DOG SALOON
ROCKERY WALL REPAIRS

ROCKERY WALL REPAIR DETAILS
VIRGINIA CITY STOREY COUNTY NEVADA

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

APRIL 2024

1

S1.1
M

LK
EJH
M

K
11188.000

4
SH

EETS:
4

 R
O

C
K

ER
Y W

A
LL R

EPA
IR

 ELEVA
TIO

N
1

S1.1
SC

ALE: 1/2"= 1'-0"'
R

O
C

K
ER

Y W
A

LL R
EPA

IR
 SEC

TIO
N

2
S1.1

SC
ALE: 1/2"= 1'-0"'

D
EC

O
R

A
TIVE SH

O
TC

R
ETE W

A
LL EXA

M
PLE

3
S1.1

SC
ALE: N

.T.S.

TH
IS IS AN

 O
PTIO

N
 FO

R
TH

E SH
O

TC
R

ETE IN
 LIEU

O
F PLAIN

 C
O

N
C

R
ETE

APPENDIX BB

COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION -  MAY 5TH, 2025 MEETING Page 8



APPENDIX B

COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION -  MAY 5TH, 2025 MEETING Page 9

Cait Watson
Stamp



--1-- 
LCB Draft of Revised Proposed Regulation R016-24 

REVISED PROPOSED REGULATION OF THE  

COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION 

LCB File No. R016-24 

January 6, 2025 

EXPLANATION – Matter in italics is new; matter in brackets [omitted material] is material to be omitted. 

AUTHORITY: §§ 1-3, NRS 384.050 and 384.090; §§ 4, 11 and 13, NRS 384.090; § 5, NRS 
384.080, 384.090, 384.115 and 384.190; §§ 6 and 7, NRS 384.060 and 384.090; 
§ 8, NRS 384.090 and 384.100; § 9, NRS 384.090 and 384.110; § 10, NRS
384.090 and 384.140; § 12, NRS 384.090 and 384.190.

A REGULATION relating to the Comstock Historic District; eliminating the offices of Secretary 
and Treasurer of the Comstock Historic District Commission; transferring certain duties 
of the Treasurer to the Chair of the Commission; revising the powers and duties of the 
Chair and Vice Chair of the Commission; revising the qualifications of members of an 
architectural committee; renaming the Office Manager employed by the Commission as 
the District Officer; revising the duties of the District Officer; revising requirements 
related to meetings of the Commission; revising a map of the boundaries of the historic 
district; revising requirements relating to an application for a certificate of 
appropriateness; requiring the Commission to consider certain standards when 
determining whether to issue a certificate of appropriateness; revising requirements 
relating to a preapplication review conducted by the Commission; clarifying the powers 
of a county or city building inspector designated by the Commission; and providing 
other matters properly relating thereto. 

Legislative Counsel’s Digest: 
 Existing law creates the Comstock Historic District Commission and requires the 
Commission to establish a historic district in certain areas of Storey and Lyon Counties. Existing 
law also: (1) prescribes the procedure for the establishment of a historic district; and (2) 
authorizes the Commission to alter or change the boundaries of the historic district by following 
the same procedure as provided for the establishment of a historic district. (NRS 384.040, 
384.100) Existing regulations set forth a map of the boundaries of the historic district, as 
originally established. (NAC 384.150) Section 8 of this regulation revises this map in 
accordance with alterations or changes made to the boundaries of the historic district.  
 Existing law grants the Commission various powers and duties related to the preservation and 
protection of any historic district established by the Commission. (NRS 384.080) Existing 
regulations require the Commission to elect or appoint a Chair, a Vice Chair, a Secretary and a 
Treasurer and set forth the powers and duties of these officers. (NAC 384.020-384.080) Section 
1 of this regulation eliminates the offices of Secretary and Treasurer of the Commission. Section 

APPENDIX C

COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION -  MAY 5TH, 2025 MEETING Page 10



--2-- 
LCB Draft of Revised Proposed Regulation R016-24 

2 of this regulation transfers certain duties of the Treasurer to the Chair and section 3 of this 
regulation authorizes the Vice Chair to perform such duties on behalf of the Chair. Sections 2 
and 13 of this regulation make conforming changes related to the elimination of these offices. 
Under existing regulations, the Chair of the Commission is required to supervise and control all 
of the business and affairs of the Commission. (NAC 384.040) Section 2 removes this 
requirement.  
 Existing law authorizes the Commission to appoint any committees or subcommittees 
necessary to carry out its duties. (NRS 384.090) Existing regulations authorize the Commission 
to appoint an architectural committee composed of members who have expertise and background 
in architecture, engineering or design, particularly as it relates to the architectural design and 
engineering methods used between 1865 and 1880. (NAC 384.090) Section 4 of this regulation 
removes the requirement that a member of the architectural subcommittee have particular 
experience relating to the architectural design and engineering methods used between 1865 and 
1880, thereby authorizing the Commission to appoint any person who has expertise and 
background in architecture, engineering or design to an architectural committee.  
 Existing law authorizes the Commission to employ such personnel as the Commission deems 
necessary to carry out its duties. (NRS 384.080) Existing regulations: (1) authorize the 
Commission to employ an Office Manager; and (2) prescribe the duties of a person so employed. 
(NAC 384.110) Section 5 of this regulation renames the Office Manager as the District Officer. 
Section 5 also revises the duties of the District Officer by requiring the District Officer to 
perform certain duties previously performed by Secretary of the Commission.  
 Existing law authorizes the Commission to establish requirements related to meetings of the 
Commission. (NRS 384.060) Existing regulations require the Commission to meet on the first 
Tuesday of each month. (NAC 384.120) Section 6 of this regulation eliminates this requirement 
and instead requires the Commission to hold at least one regular meeting each month unless an 
exception applies. Section 6 exempts the Commission from this requirement if: (1) inclement 
weather or other uncontrollable circumstances make it impossible, impracticable or inadvisable 
for the Commission to meet; (2) a quorum of members is unable to meet; or (3) the Chair 
determines that there is not sufficient business to warrant meeting.  
 Existing regulations: (1) authorize the Commission to hold special meetings; and (2) require 
that written notice of any such meeting be delivered personally or sent by mail or telegram to 
each Commissioner. (NAC 384.120, 384.130) Section 7 of this regulation authorizes the 
electronic transmission of this notice. 
 In general, existing law requires a person to obtain a certificate of appropriateness from the 
Commission before building or altering a structure within the historic district. Under existing 
law, an application for a certificate of appropriateness must be accompanied by such plans, 
specifications and other material as the Commission prescribes. (NRS 384.110) Existing 
regulations require each application for a certificate of appropriateness to be accompanied by 
drawings or plans of the proposed alterations, additions or changes. (NAC 384.160) Section 9 of 
this regulation instead requires each application to be accompanied by a written description of 
the proposed alterations, additions or changes. Section 9 also removes a requirement that certain 
applications for a certificate of appropriateness be accompanied by certain photographs. Finally, 
section 9 authorizes the Commission to require an applicant to submit any additional 
information, documentation, drawings or photographs necessary to determine whether to issue a 
certificate of appropriateness to the applicant.  

COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION -  MAY 5TH, 2025 MEETING Page 11



--3-- 
LCB Draft of Revised Proposed Regulation R016-24 

 Existing law requires the Commission to consider certain factors in determining whether to 
issue a certificate of appropriateness. (NRS 384.140) Section 10 of this regulation revises the 
principles that the Commission must consider when determining whether to issue a certificate of 
appropriateness. (NAC 384.170)  
 Existing regulations provide for the preapplication review of certain preliminary materials by 
the Commission. (NAC 384.180) Section 11 of this regulation eliminates a requirement that 
certain notice be given to the Commission before a preapplication review.  

Existing law prescribes the powers of a building inspector or other similar authority 
employed by the Commission. (NRS 384.190) Existing regulations authorize the Commission to 
designate a county or city building inspector to perform certain duties within the historic district. 
(NAC 384.190) Section 12 of this regulation clarifies the powers granted to a county or city 
building inspector so designated. Finally, section 13 eliminates the authorization for certain 
officers of the Commission to enter into contracts or sign checks on behalf of the Commission. 

Section 1.  NAC 384.020 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 384.020  1.  The officers of the Commission consist of a Chair [, a] and Vice Chair , [, a 

Secretary and a Treasurer,] as determined by the Commission. 

2. The Commission may elect or appoint such other officers as it deems desirable. These

officers shall perform the duties prescribed from time to time by the Commission. 

3. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person, except the Office of Chair.

Sec. 2.  NAC 384.040 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 384.040  1.  The Chair is the principal executive officer of the Commission . [and shall 

supervise and control all of the business and affairs of the Commission.] 

2. The Chair shall preside at all meetings of the Commission.

3. The Chair may sign, with the [Secretary, or any other proper officer of the Commission

authorized by the Commission,] Vice Chair, any deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts, or other 

instruments which the Commission has authorized to be executed, except in cases where the 

signing and execution is expressly delegated by the Commission, or by statute, to some other 

officer or agent of the Commission. 

COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION -  MAY 5TH, 2025 MEETING Page 12



--4-- 
LCB Draft of Revised Proposed Regulation R016-24 

4. The Chair shall perform the duties incident to his or her office and such other duties as

may be prescribed by the Commission from time to time. 

5. The Chair has charge and custody of and is responsible for all funds and securities of

the Commission. The Chair shall receive and give receipts for money due and payable to the 

Commission from any source whatsoever and shall deposit all such money in the name of the 

Commission in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as are selected by the 

Commission. 

Sec. 3.  NAC 384.050 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 384.050  1.  In the absence of the Chair, or in the event of his or her inability or refusal to 

act, as determined by a majority of the Commission, the Vice Chair shall perform the duties of 

the Chair. 

2. When acting as Chair, the Vice Chair has all the powers of and is subject to all the

restrictions upon the Chair. 

3. The Vice Chair shall perform such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to

him or her by the Chair or by the Commission. 

4. The Vice Chair may perform any of the actions described in subsection 5 of NAC

384.040 on behalf of the Chair. 

Sec. 4.  NAC 384.090 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 384.090  1.  The Commission, by resolution adopted by a majority of the Commissioners, 

may designate one or more committees, each of which must consist of two or more 

Commissioners. 

2. The committees, to the extent provided in the resolution, have and shall exercise the

authority of the Commission and the management of the Commission; but the designation of 

COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION -  MAY 5TH, 2025 MEETING Page 13



--5-- 
LCB Draft of Revised Proposed Regulation R016-24 

such committees and the delegation of authority to them does not operate to relieve the 

Commission or any individual Commissioner of any responsibility imposed upon the 

Commission or the Commissioner by law. 

3. The Commission may appoint an architectural committee composed of members who

have expertise and background in architecture, engineering or design . [, particularly as it relates 

to the architectural design and engineering methods used and employed in the Comstock Era 

between 1865 and 1880.] This committee’s purpose is to advise and consult with the 

Commission on applications for certificates of appropriateness, make recommendations to the 

Commission, and perform such other duties and functions as the Commission deems advisable. 

The members of this committee need not be members of the Commission. 

4. Other committees not having and exercising the authority of the Commission may be

designated by a resolution adopted by the Commission. Except as otherwise provided in the 

resolution, the members of such a committee need not be members of the Commission. The 

Chair shall appoint the members of the committee. Any member of the committee may be 

removed by the Chair whenever in his or her judgment the best interests of the Commission will 

be served by the removal. 

Sec. 5.  NAC 384.110 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 384.110  1.  The Commission may employ [an Office Manager] a District Officer to 

[supervise all] carry out the powers and duties described in subsections 2 and 3. 

2. The District Officer shall:

(a) Supervise:

(1) The office and day-to-day [routine] operations of the Commission [, supervise the] ;

(2) Any personnel employed by the Commission pursuant to NRS 384.080; and

COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION -  MAY 5TH, 2025 MEETING Page 14



--6-- 
LCB Draft of Revised Proposed Regulation R016-24 

(3) Any building inspectors [and handle violations.

2. The Office Manager shall advise] designated by the Commission pursuant to NAC

384.190; 

(b) Advise the Commission of pending business and applications [and report] ;

(c) Report violations [.

3. The Office Manager shall interview] of this chapter or NRS 384.010 to 384.210,

inclusive, and handle any such violations in any manner required by the Commission;  

(d) Interview and advise applicants according to law and practice, [and shall advise them]

including, without limitation, advising applicants of approved standards and details [. 

4. The Office Manager shall review] ;

(e) Review applications for presentation to meetings of the Commission ;

(f) Keep the minutes of the meetings of the Commission, in one or more books provided for

that purpose; 

(g) See that all notices are given in accordance with the provisions of this chapter or as

required by law; 

(h) Be custodian of the records of the Commission, including all applications for

certificates of appropriateness, and their disposition, drawings, photographs, maps, and the 

library of the Commission; 

(i) Keep a register of the mailing address of each member of the Commission; and [shall

perform] 

(j) Perform such other duties as the Commission from time to time may assign.

3. The District Officer may:

COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION -  MAY 5TH, 2025 MEETING Page 15



--7-- 
LCB Draft of Revised Proposed Regulation R016-24 

(a) Issue certificates of appropriateness on behalf of the Commission in accordance with

NRS 384.115; and 

(b) Exercise the powers granted to a building inspector or similar authority by NRS

384.190. 

Sec. 6.  NAC 384.120 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 384.120  1.  [Regular meetings of the Commissioners must be held] Except as otherwise 

provided in subsection 2, the Commission will hold a regular meeting at least once each 

month at the Office of the Commission in Virginia City . [on the first Tuesday of each month.]  

2. The requirements of subsection 1 do not apply if:

(a) Inclement weather or other uncontrollable circumstances make it impossible,

impracticable or inadvisable for the Commission to meet; 

(b) A quorum of members is unable to meet; or

(c) The Chair determines that there is not sufficient business to warrant meeting.

 [2.] 3.  Special meetings of the Commissioners may be called by or at the request of the 

Chair or two Commissioners. The Chair shall fix the time of the special meeting and the place of 

the meeting, which may be within or without the [Historic District. 

 3.] historic district. 

4. If less than a majority of Commissioners are present, a majority of the Commissioners

present may adjourn a meeting from time to time without further notice. 

Sec. 7.  NAC 384.130 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 384.130  1.  [Notice] Written notice of a special meeting of the Commission must be given 

at least 7 days before the meeting . [, by written] The notice [delivered] must be: 

(a) Delivered personally [, or sent] to each Commissioner;

COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION -  MAY 5TH, 2025 MEETING Page 16



--8-- 
LCB Draft of Revised Proposed Regulation R016-24 

(b) Sent by regular mail [or telegram] to each Commissioner, at his or her address as shown

on the records of the Commission [.] ; or 

(c) Transmitted by electronic mail.

2. Any Commissioner may waive notice of any meeting.

3. A Commissioner’s attendance at a meeting constitutes a waiver of notice, except where

the Commissioner attends for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of business 

because it was not lawfully called. 

4. The general nature of the business to be transacted at the special meeting must be set

forth in the notice. 

Sec. 8.  NAC 384.150 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

384.150   

COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION -  MAY 5TH, 2025 MEETING Page 17



 

--9-- 
LCB Draft of Revised Proposed Regulation R016-24 

[ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

] 

COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION -  MAY 5TH, 2025 MEETING Page 18



--10-- 
LCB Draft of Revised Proposed Regulation R016-24 

COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION -  MAY 5TH, 2025 MEETING Page 19



--11-- 
LCB Draft of Revised Proposed Regulation R016-24 

Sec. 9.  NAC 384.160 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 384.160  1.  The Commission will prepare and make available applications for certificates 

of appropriateness to applicants desiring to erect, reconstruct, alter, restore, move or demolish 

any structure within the [District,] historic district, and may establish a reasonable fee to cover 

the cost of processing an application. 

2. The Commission may issue guidelines or bulletins and instruction sheets from time to

time setting forth the general policies of the Commission, design criteria, projects or work that 

may be undertaken without a certificate of appropriateness, and such other information and data 

which the Commission deems necessary to better inform and assist applicants in submitting their 

applications for such certificates. The guidelines, bulletins or instruction sheets issued 

pursuant to this subsection may include, without limitation, specific information concerning 

requirements related to exterior signage within the historic district.  

3. All applications for certificates of appropriateness must be filed with the Office of the

Commission and must remain a part of its records. 

4. Every application must be accompanied by a written description of the proposed

alteration, additions or changes and may include, without limitation, drawings or plans of the 

proposed alteration, additions or changes, [and for new construction of buildings or property 

use,] signed by the person, architect, or draftsman who prepared them. [As used in this 

subsection, “drawing” means plans and exterior elevation drawn to scale with sufficient detail to 

show, so far as they relate to exterior appearances, the architectural design of buildings, 

including proposed materials, textures and colors, including samples of materials or color 

samples, and the plot plan or site lay-out, including all improvements affecting appearances, such 

as walls, walks, terraces, planting, accessory buildings, signs, lights and other elements.] 

COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION -  MAY 5TH, 2025 MEETING Page 20



 

--12-- 
LCB Draft of Revised Proposed Regulation R016-24 

 5.  The Commission may require an applicant to submit any additional information, 

documentation, drawings or photographs necessary to make a determination regarding the 

application. 

 6.  In the case of an application to alter or add to a structure within the [District,] historic 

district, the application [must] may be accompanied by legible photographs of all sides of the 

structure. In the case of applications for demolition of structures, the applicant shall submit 

legible photographs of all sides of the [building] structure under consideration and photographs 

showing contiguous properties. In the case of an application to construct a new building in the 

[District,] historic district, the application [must] may be accompanied by legible photographs of 

the adjoining properties. In accordance with subsection 5, the Commission may require an 

applicant to submit any photographs described in this subsection. 

 7.  As used in this section, “drawing” means plans and exterior elevation drawn to scale 

with sufficient detail to show, so far as they relate to exterior appearances, the architectural 

design of buildings, including proposed materials, textures and colors, including samples of 

materials or color samples, and the plot plan or site layout, including all improvements 

affecting appearances, such as walls, walks, terraces, planting, accessory buildings, signs, 

lights and other elements.  

 Sec. 10.  NAC 384.170 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 384.170  [1.  Preservation is the first responsibility of] In addition to considering the 

factors set forth in NRS 384.140, in passing upon the appropriateness of an application 

pursuant to NRS 384.115 or 384.130, the Commission [, and preservation is preferred] will give 

consideration to [restoration.] : 

COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION -  MAY 5TH, 2025 MEETING Page 21



 

--13-- 
LCB Draft of Revised Proposed Regulation R016-24 

 1.  The Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties set 

forth in 36 C.F.R. Part 68; 

 2.  The following principles: 

 (a) Architectural integrity [is] , authenticity and retention of historic building materials are 

preferable to [synthetic style. 

 3.  Change] substitute building materials and conjectural changes.  

 (b) Alterations should be [considered] in [relation to] keeping with the [remainder] character 

of the [building] structure and [its neighboring structures. 

 4.  Change] the historic district. 

 (c) Rehabilitating or restoring a structure to [authentic] its historic appearance is desirable. 

 [5.]  (d) In [all] planning new [building plans,] construction within the historic district, 

extreme care should be observed. [Each new building should be worthy of the area and a pride to 

the neighborhood. Since all] All new construction [aims to capitalize on the merits of the historic 

background of the District, it] should [also] contribute [its share of] to the quality, character and 

desirability [.] of the historic district. All new construction should be compatible with the 

historic character of the historic district and should not detract from the integrity of the 

historic district. 

 [6.] (e) Economic consideration should have little effect on the Commission’s judgment 

insofar as permitting cheaper means of construction, decoration, and [fabrication. 

 7.  Imitations] building material selection. 

 (f) Direct imitation of [old] historic styles [and fake architecture are] is not desirable. It is 

more important that new construction be in scale with older structures and [not detrimental] be 

COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION -  MAY 5TH, 2025 MEETING Page 22



 

--14-- 
LCB Draft of Revised Proposed Regulation R016-24 

differentiated from them in order to [buildings with historic and architectural worth.] not lend a 

false sense of history. 

 Sec. 11.  NAC 384.180 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 384.180  [1.]  Prior to a preparation of working drawings or calling for proposals or bids 

from contractors, prospective property developers, owners or agents may prepare preliminary 

[scale] drawings , [and outlines,] specifications, including color samples for outside work [,] and 

photographs for review and informal discussion with the Commission. The purpose of this 

review is to acquaint the developer, owner or agent with the standards of appropriateness of 

design that are required of his or her proposed development. 

 [2.  Preapplication review does not require formal application but does require notice to be 

given to the Commission at least 10 days before the date of the meeting in which the preliminary 

drawings are to be discussed.] 

 Sec. 12.  NAC 384.190 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 384.190  1.  The Commission may designate any county or city building inspector within 

the [District] historic district to investigate, inspect and examine any structure, place or area 

within the [District in accordance with NRS 384.190.] historic district. 

 2.  [When a certificate of appropriateness is granted,] Upon request, a county or city 

building inspector [may be authorized by the Commission to make] designated pursuant to 

subsection 1 may: 

 (a) Make periodic inspections [and make] of a structure, place or area within the historic 

district;  

 (b) Provide progress reports to the Commission [.  

 3.  The inspector may also be requested to report any] ; and 

COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION -  MAY 5TH, 2025 MEETING Page 23



--15-- 
LCB Draft of Revised Proposed Regulation R016-24 

(c) Report violations of chapter 384 of NRS to the Commission and other appropriate

authorities. 

3. Except as otherwise provided in this section, a county or city building inspector

designated by the Commission pursuant to subsection 1 does not have the authority granted to 

a building inspector or similar authority by NRS 384.190. 

Sec. 13.  NAC 384.060, 384.070 and 384.080 are hereby repealed. 

TEXT OF REPEALED SECTIONS 

384.060  Duties of Treasurer. 

1. If required by the Commission, the Treasurer shall give a bond for the faithful discharge

of his or her duties in such sum and with such surety or sureties as the Commission determines. 

2. The Treasurer has charge and custody of and is responsible for all funds and securities of

the Commission. The Treasurer shall receive and give receipts for money due and payable to the 

Commission from any source whatsoever and, in accordance with subsection 3 of NAC 384.080, 

shall deposit all such money in the name of the Commission in such banks, trust companies, or 

other depositories as are selected by the Commission. 

3. The Treasurer shall perform all the duties incident to his or her office and such other

duties as from time to time may be assigned to him or her by the Chair. 

384.070  Duties of Secretary.  The Secretary shall: 

COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION -  MAY 5TH, 2025 MEETING Page 24



 

--16-- 
LCB Draft of Revised Proposed Regulation R016-24 

 1.  Keep the minutes of the meetings of the Commission, in one or more books provided for 

that purpose; 

 2.  See that all notices are given in accordance with the provisions of this chapter or as 

required by law; 

 3.  Be custodian of the Commission’s records, including all applications for certificates of 

appropriateness, and their disposition, drawings, photographs, maps, and the Commission’s 

library; 

 4.  Keep and maintain a card index system, as required by statute, and keep a register of the 

mailing address of each member of the Commission which must be furnished to the Secretary by 

the Commission; and 

 5.  Perform all duties incident to his or her office and such other duties as from time to time 

may be assigned to him or her by the Chair or by the Commission. 

 384.080  Contracts, checks, deposits. 

 1.  The Chair and Secretary may enter into any contract or execute and deliver any 

instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Commission. 

 2.  All checks, drafts, or orders for the payment of money, notes, or other evidences of 

indebtednesses issued in the name of the Commission must be signed by the Treasurer and 

countersigned by the Chair or Vice Chair of the Commission. 

 3.  All money of the Commission must be deposited from time to time to the credit of the 

Commission, in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as the Commission may 

select. The Commission may also purchase time certificates of deposit. 

 

 

COMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION -  MAY 5TH, 2025 MEETING Page 25


	04012025_CHDC_AGENDA.pdf
	04012025_CHDC_AGENDA.pdf
	NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING & AGENDACOMSTOCK HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION


	2025-04-24 - Red Dog Wall Repair - Preliminary.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	S1.1


	Blank Page
	app c.pdf
	04012025_CHDC_AGENDA.pdf
	R016-24RP1.pdf





